
Heber City Corporation
City Council Meeting

09/03/2009

7:00 p.m.

REGULAR MEETING 

The Council of Heber City, Wasatch County, Utah, met in Regular Meeting on September 3, 
2009, in the City Council Chambers in Heber City, Utah.

Present: Mayor David R. Phillips

Council Members Jeffery Bradshaw
Elizabeth Hokanson
Eric Straddeck
Nile Horner
Robert Patterson

Also Present: City Manager Mark K. Anderson
City Recorder Paulette Thurber
City Engineer Bart Mumford
City Planner Allen Fawcett
Chief of Police Ed Rhoades

Others Present:

Pledge of Allegiance: Councilmember Elizabeth Hokanson
Prayer/Thought Councilmember Eric Straddeck

Minutes: 06/18/2009 Regular Meeting
08/20/2009 Work Meeting

Councilmember Robert Patterson moved to approve the June 18, 2009, Regular Meeting Minutes 
and the August 20, 2009, Work Meeting Minutes. Councilmember Bradshaw made the second. 
The voting was unanimous in the affirmative.

Mayor’s Recognition: John Emmanuel and Chris Pedersen

Mayor Phillips indicated two employees in the Public Works Department worked on a water 
problem for an individual a while back. That individual called Mayor Phillips and indicated the 
two men from the Public Works Department worked late into the night and were back early the 
next day and their efforts were appreciated. Mayor Phillips recognized John and Chris for their 
efforts and presented them each with a $25 check. 

Councilmember Patterson was excused at 7:08

OPEN PERIOD FOR PUBLIC COMMENT

Mayor Phillips invited anyone that wanted, to address the Council. No comments were received.
1 of 9 cc09032009



CONSENT AGENDA

Wade Kelson – Center Creek Estates – Phase I – Request for an extension to record 
Subdivision Plat – Located on Mill Road between 1200 South and approximately 1500 
South and between approximately 800 East and 1200 East (Originally approved 
09/18/2008): 

Brad Mackey – Mill Road Estates – Phases 3 and 4 – Request for an extension to record 
Subdivision Plats – Property located at approximately 400 South between 700 and 1200 
East (Originally approved 08/21/2008):  Councilmember Hokanson wanted to make sure the 
transfer of the affordable housing lots was complete. Councilmember Bradshaw said the lots 
designated for the Housing Authority had not been turned over yet. He said there was a 
difference in opinion on how that should take place. However, he felt that before the extension 
was granted, that should be done. Mackey said they were fine with transferring those. He said, 
though, it stated in the Development Agreement those lots were to be deeded to Heber City and 
not the Housing Authority. Councilmember Bradshaw explained that what would happen if they 
were deeded to Heber City was that the City would deed them over to the Housing Authority. He 
suggested it would be easier to just deed to the Housing Authority and save a step. 
Councilmember Bradshaw felt a letter from the City authorizing the developer to deed the lots to 
the Housing Authority would be appropriate. All Council agreed.  Mackey indicated Ivory 
Builders wanted to build the homes on those lots for conformity with the rest of the homes in the 
subdivision.  Councilmember Horner indicated it had to be the Authority selling those lots, 
however. Councilmember Bradshaw said the Authority would make sure those homes were in 
conformity. 

Councilmember Straddeck asked if there were any remaining issues with snow removal along 
the south sidewalk.  Anderson said those issues were resolved.  Mayor Phillips said at one time 
thee was talk about the School District taking care of that.  Anderson said Ivory had agreed to 
take care of that snow removal. 

Councilmember Horner did not want to approve the extension until the affordable housing lots 
had been turned over to the City or the Housing Authority. Mackey said that was fine as long as 
he did not lose his chance for an extension. Mumford indicated transferring those lots was a 
requirement to get final on the second phase.  

Councilmember Horner moved to grant a one-year extension to record Phases 3 and 4 of Mill 
Road Estates Subdivision if the City received confirmation that the lots intended for the Housing 
Authority had been turned over and that had to be done by October 1. Councilmember Bradshaw 
made the second. No further discussion. The voting was unanimous in the affirmative. 
Councilmember Patterson had temporarily left the meeting.

Grant Approval - State of Utah Department of Transportation, Aeronautics Division – 
Wildlife Fencing and Runway Safety Area Mitigation: 

Councilmember Hokanson moved to approve the other two items on the Consent Agenda. 
Councilmember Bradshaw made the second. The voting was unanimous in the affirmative. 
Councilmember Patterson had temporarily left the meeting.

2 of 9 cc09032009



APPOINTMENTS

Josh Anderson – Eagle Project – Signage at Eagle Park (Timp Meadows North Park): 
Josh indicated he was working on a project at Eagle Park. He said he wanted to erect a sign that 
recognized the Scouts who had worked to help build the Park.  He suggested everyone knew the 
Park as Timp Meadows Park and he wanted to make sure that it was recognized as Eagle Park as 
the name was changed in a Council meeting a several years ago. 

Councilmember Horner asked about the materials for the sign. Josh reviewed the materials per 
the drawing he had submitted.  Josh said he was leading the project and also donating his time 
and said he wanted to have it done in two or three weeks so it would not interrupt his school 
work. Councilmember Straddeck said the west side started sloping and asked about the 
placement. It was indicated the sign would be six feet from the sidewalk. Josh reviewed the 
construction details. Councilmember Horner felt the base work was too shallow. Mumford felt, if 
it was reinforced, it would be fine. The Council just did not want someone tipping it over.  Josh 
said it would be quite heavy—the weight was approximately 1500 lbs.

Mayor Phillips said the Scouts in this community had been great over the years with projects and 
felt it was fitting their work and participation at this Park should be recognized.  Councilmember 
Hokanson felt this was a great idea and she, too, felt the Scouts should be recognized for their 
work in that Park.  

Councilmember Hokanson moved to approve this Eagle Scout project. Councilmember 
Bradshaw made the second. No further discussion. The voting was unanimous in the affirmative. 
Councilmember Patterson had temporarily left the meeting.

Ray Hult – Request for 5-year extension – Off-Site Reimbursement Agreement:  Eric Hult 
represented his dad, Ray Hult, on this issue.  Mayor Phillips asked for questions from the 
Council or if Hult wanted to make any comments. Hult said this involved a project from about 
ten years ago on East Airport Road as part of Wing Pointe Development, Greenfield 
Development and Heber Landing Development when roads, utilities, and sidewalks were run. 
Hult said he had quickly put together a draft summary of their expenses which showed $866,000 
in expenses. He referred to a 1999 letter from Horrocks Engineers which outlined the costs that 
were reimbursable. He also referred to Heber City Policy #94-01 in which it was written that 
after 10-years from final approval of the project had lapsed, a one time five-year extension could 
be requested. He said he had talked with Wes Johnson at Horrocks earlier in the day and it 
appeared there was still approximately $300,000 that could be reimbursed. 

Anderson reviewed the letter from Horrocks.  He said he thought Wheeler Park had paid their 
entire obligation of $143,108.08. Anderson said the biggest opportunity for reimbursement was 
the Steel property currently owned by Dick Baum. 

Hult indicated the Agreement was going to expire and it allowed for an extension.  Anderson 
referred to the Policy, which the Council had a copy of, which stated Hults could ask for a 5-year 
extension. 

Councilmember Horner moved to grant the five-year extension to the Off-Site Reimbursement 
Agreement. Councilmember Hokanson made the second. No discussion. The voting was 
unanimous in the affirmative. Councilmember Patterson had temporarily left the meeting.

3 of 9 cc09032009



Ernie Giles – Presentation/Discussion from the Fire District (Request made at Interlocal 
Meeting held on 08/11/09): Ernie Giles reviewed the Hicken fire and said it actually brought 
realization of the importance of fire inspections. He continued that since the Interlocal Meeting, 
Midway City had adopted a policy. He explained Midway’s policy which was a yearly 
inspection of every business except home occupations and asked if Heber City would be 
interested in a similar policy. He pointed out the Building Department inspected initially, but 
after that point, since the Building Department only did the initial inspection, they (The Fire 
Department) would want to do follow-up inspections. He said they would fill out a three or four 
part form, giving one to the business owner, showing the inspection had been done. Then when 
the business renewed, they would provide that form to the Business License Administrator 
showing they had had an inspection within the year. If they did not show the form, a new 
inspection would need to be done. He said that because it was close to the end of the year and 
both Midway City and Heber City did business license renewals at the first of the year, they 
would not be able to inspect all the businesses. However, he wanted to start the process and then 
in 2010 implement the plan on a renewal basis.  He indicated they were going to go a year’s trial 
run in Midway with no cost to the business owner or the City--the Fire District would absorb the 
costs. He suggested that was a win/win situation for both Midway City and the Fire District. 
Giles said he would like to get all businesses up-to-date in relation to fire inspections.  Mayor 
Phillips asked if they intended to do the same thing for Heber City businesses as far as no cost to 
the businesses. Giles said yes, he wanted to get all businesses up-to-date with safety-related 
issues. 

Councilmember Bradshaw felt, if the Fire District wanted to inspect the City’s businesses on a 
provisional basis for a year, it would be fine.  Councilmember Straddeck asked if the inspections 
would be tied to business license renewals. It was thought Heber City probably had 700 or more 
businesses with 300 or more that would need inspections.  Giles said they would start now and 
work on them for a year. Then when they came in for renewal of their business license they 
would have a paper from the Fire District stating they had had an inspection during the last year. 
Councilmember Hokanson asked what happened if the standards were not met.  He said they 
would be given a form outlining the violation and given a time limit to correct the problem and 
then the Fire District would do a re-inspection. She asked about more serious violations, 
particularly of older businesses, that might even require remodeling. He said they would work 
with the business owners and give them enough time to make the correction, possibly even five 
to seven years. Mayor Phillips asked about businesses that didn’t have any major problems, if 
Giles was confident they would be able to inspect them in time that they could keep their 
licenses in order year-to-year. Giles said yes that once the system was in order, there should be 
no problems. He talked about a time a few years back when the Fire District had proposed doing 
inspections for a fee. That never happened. Now he felt they needed to proceed and take the 
“bite” (talking about the fee) for the first year. He said he did not want to put the lives of the 
firemen in jeopardy again as they were during the Hicken fire. 

Councilmember Horner asked about the renewal for 2010. Giles said they could not do them all 
at once so an inspection form for the 2010 licenses would not apply. But after that, they would 
need an inspection report. Councilmember Straddeck anticipated some businesses would not 
need to be inspected every year. Giles said they would go over the list provided by the City and 
start with those that were the highest risk. If there were businesses that the public was not invited 
into, those businesses would not need a yearly inspection. However, the ones that had public 
contact should be inspected yearly.

4 of 9 cc09032009



Councilmember Straddeck moved that Heber City have the Fire District inspect the list of 
businesses provided by the City on a first-year trail basis. Councilmember Hokanson made the 
second. Discussion about putting a Memorandum of Understanding together that would outline 
everyone’s roll and expectations similar to what Midway City had done. It was pointed out that 
Midway City Council approved their business licenses and that was the reason for the Fire 
District to schedule every two weeks. However, Heber City would need a faster turn around 
period of one or two days.  The motion was unanimous in the affirmative. Councilmember 
Patterson had temporarily left the meeting.

Councilmember Patterson returned at 7:50 p.m.

Brian Balls - Ordinance 2009-15 - Nichol Annexation – (Continued from 09/04/2008 
Meeting):  Councilmember Straddeck moved to deny the annexation petition. 

Ross Nichol said a year ago this issue had been continued until the bypass road was outlined. He 
said he did not realize the annexation was on the agenda for approval tonight.  Nichol talked 
about the different annexations around his property and the different bypass routes discussed 
over that past several years.

Anderson pointed out a meeting with Wasatch County to discuss the bypass was held at 5:00 
p.m. tonight. Mayor Phillips recalled the last City Council meeting when this issue was 
discussed, it was decided the meetings between Wasatch County and the Sewer District had to be 
held prior to any decision being made. 

Councilmember Straddeck said he wanted to amend his motion. He said his purpose was not so 
much to seek denial at this time but he did not think the 5:00 meeting with Wasatch County had 
gotten them any closer to a route than before. 

Councilmember Straddeck moved that the Council continue this issue until the City Council and 
County Council had a chance to meet with UDOT. Councilmember Patterson made the second.  

Nichol said the south and north ends of the bypass had changed, but through his property, 
nothing had changed based on the right-of-way already obtained by the City. He said he felt he 
was caught in a trap based on the north and south entrances. Anderson indicated the Council had 
agreed to put the bypass alignment on the agenda for September 17 to see if the two bodies could 
come to an agreement. 

Brian Balls, Summit Engineering, indicated he did not realize the agenda item was for denial or 
approval of the annexation but rather just additional discussion on where they stood. He said he 
attended the 5:00 p.m. meeting and said the position the County was taking was that whatever 
alignment was worked out between Wasatch County and Heber City, the two entities would go 
to UDOT with a proposal and the hope was that the bypass would be paid for as much as 
possible with transportation dollars. He said he did not think there were any other options for the 
Nichol property based on the Sherman Giles Annexation, which was fixed, and the other areas 
acquired by the City through annexations. He said there had been a lot of discussion over the last 
year but nothing had really been discussed about this particular piece. He agreed with Mr. Nichol 
that there was not any other option for this property.

Councilmember Horner said the drawings on the overhead from the 5:00 p.m. meeting were 
drawings the City Council was seeing for the first time tonight and as a group, they were not 
5 of 9 cc09032009



comfortable with the proposal. He said the decision makers had a lot of work ahead of them and 
the proposed routes could change. 

Mayor Phillips pointed out the City Council and the County Council wanted to move forward 
and go as a group to UDOT with a proposal. 

Balls asked if there was still discussion that needed to be held with the Sewer District. 
Councilmember Bradshaw said the main concern from the meeting earlier was if the road was 
moved to the east, would it impact their plans. Balls said, yes, it definitely would impact them. 
Nichol indicated if the route went east, it would make a huge impact and he would probably just 
wait for condemnation.

The voting on the motion was unanimous in the affirmative. 

ACTION ITEMS

Approval - Three Party Hosting Agreement – Heber City Corporation, Digis LLC, and 
Alan Anderson (Continued from 08/20/2009 Meeting): Anderson said Deb Anderson was in 
the audience. He said the Andersons had expressed concern with the changes in the language of 
the Agreement. Mrs. Anderson passed out some pictures and indicated Digis was using their 
electricity for their antenna. She said this antenna was a huge, intrusive antenna and because of 
the antenna, their view of the valley was blocked. They had some concern about the City 
allowing additional antennas on the tank. They felt, at this point, they could compromise with 
this one antenna but would not compromise on any other antenna. 

Anderson said the Andersons wanted language in the Agreement that stated no other antenna 
would be placed on the tank. Councilmember Horner asked what the cost to Digis had been. 
Digis was not represented, but Mark Anderson talked about some of their costs. 
Mark Anderson said if the City were to grant other antennas, they would have to find their own 
power source. Deb Anderson said she wanted paragraph two stricken from the document. 

Councilmember Horner did not want to enter into a three-party agreement and felt there should 
be individual contracts instead. He then questioned why the Code could not be changed so these 
type of things could be put on private property rather than just City property.

Councilmember Hokanson wanted to make sure Deb Anderson understood the Agreement even 
with paragraph two taken out.  She said she did.

Councilmember Hokanson moved to approve the Three Party Hosing Agreement between Heber 
City, Digis LLC, and Alan Anderson as presented with the strikeout of paragraph two. 
Councilmember Bradshaw made the second. Councilmember Patterson asked if the location of 
the antenna was in the best place it could be. It was indicated it was located on the highest public 
property. Anderson reviewed the Code. Voting AYE: Jeff Bradshaw, Elizabeth Hokanson, Nile 
Horner and Robert Patterson.   Voting NAY: Eric Straddeck.

Review – Draft Agreement between Timpanogos Valley Theater and Heber City in relation 
to the Heber Social Hall (Continued from the 08/20/2009 Meeting): Mayor Phillips indicated 
the Council had reviewed the draft agreement between Timpanogos Valley Theater (TVT) and 
Heber City. 

6 of 9 cc09032009



Councilmember Horner said his concern was the dance floor. He said it was in bad shape now 
and wondered if the City should look at that and do something to preserve it and prevent it from 
deteriorating more. Like sand it down, seal it, etc., and thought now was the time to look at that.  
Mayor Phillips asked Anderson to follow through with that and get a cost for the Council’s 
information.

Councilmember Hokanson wanted comment from TVT and asked if they had any comments or 
concerns. Duke Distefano thanked the Council for the opportunity of occupying that building and 
was glad this issue was moving forward. He thought using the building for its original purpose 
was a plus for the entire community. He said the lease was agreeable to them. He did, however, 
ask about property tax and wondered who took care of that. Anderson explained the building was 
public property and, as long as it stayed in public use, there would be no tax. Distefano had 
concerns with the two-year option. He asked for the first option to match another offer to use the 
building.  The Council was O.K. with adding that language. Anderson said when the City 
obtained the tabernacle and social hall, it was with the stipulation those buildings stayed in 
public use.  Distefano said they would like to take an electrician in to make sure the building 
itself could meet the standards for lighting and sound systems necessary for a theater before they 
entered into the Agreement.  Additional discussion that the Agreement needed an amendment to 
add language that the TVT had the first right to renew and also the City had a right to terminate 
with a 60-day notice. It was pointed out there were two (2) #19’s and that had to be fixed. 
Discussion about insurance. Anderson said the City insured the building and the City wanted to 
be listed as insured for their liability insurance. 

Councilmember Bradshaw moved to approve the Social Hall Lease Agreement between 
Timpanogos Valley Theater and Heber City for the amount of $1 a year, allow the TVT the first 
right of refusal on the lease, add a 60-day termination clause and also allow the TVT to have the 
electrical wires, etc., inspected to determine if lighting and sound systems could be utilized. 
Councilmember Hokanson made the second. 

A lady from the DUP asked if they would always have a place for their artifacts. It was indicated 
the Agreement was with the TVT.  Homer LaBaren said he was very much involved with SUP 
and had worked with the DUP in trying to find a place for their artifacts. He pointed out the City 
did not have a respectable museum and suggested the Council would be hearing more about a 
museum in the future. He said there was a need to find a place within the next two years. He also 
suggested, if the City had extra funds, the DUP would be interested, or if the City knew of any 
wealthy people, please direct them to him and the museum. 

The voting on the motion was unanimous in the affirmative.

Approval – Updated Consolidated Plan (Continued from the 08/20/2009 Meeting): 
Anderson indicated the changes identified at last meeting had been incorporated in the Plan 
presented tonight. Councilmember Straddeck asked about the new City Police 
Department/Justice Department at $5,000,000 and the new City Office Building at $5,000,000 
dollars listed in the document. Anderson said those were the estimated costs from the analysis 
study prepared by GSBS. Jason Bradley pointed out the Park City Police Department cost 
$7,000,000 two years ago. 

Councilmember Straddeck asked what the difference was on the first page table and the other 
tables. Anderson said he thought it was to identify the most likely to occur from others. 

7 of 9 cc09032009



Councilmember Horner asked about the Capitol Facilities Study and Mayor Phillips asked if that 
was being worked on. Anderson said Mumford wanted to start this fall. 

Councilmember Horner felt it would be good to know the total dollar figure for each year. 
It was explained this Plan was submitted to Mountainland Association of Governments and that 
organization got a consolidated plan from each municipality they were involved with. They work 
toward grants and other funding. It was explained this list had to be submitted in order to even 
try for CDBG monies. 

Councilmember Straddeck moved to approve the updated Consolidated Plan. Councilmember 
Patterson made the second. The voting was unanimous in the affirmative. 

Councilmember Horner asked for total amounts based on year. Anderson said he would have that 
done.

Discussion – Irrigation Policy:  Mumford reviewed the desire of the Council to get the entire 
City on pressurized irrigation. He said the policy he presented tonight initiated the discussion to 
transition from secondary ditch irrigation to pressurized irrigation. He pointed out there had been 
a policy drafted already for the people on Center Street to transition over from ditch irrigation to 
pressurized irrigation which was written by Wasatch Irrigation. He said those people on Center 
Street would remain as Wasatch Irrigation users but they would be getting pressurized water 
instead of secondary.  He said these were the first people to transition over. 

Mayor Phillips suggested this issue be on an agenda by itself. He thought the issue was important 
enough to have a special meeting on this alone. 

Councilmember Patterson wanted clarification that those having ditch water would keep their 
irrigation stock but would be serviced through a pressurized system rather than a ditch system. 
Devin McKrola, Engineer for Water Efficiency Project, said the residents would always be 
subject to Wasatch Irrigation policy since they were share holders in that Company. He said 
people would have enough water to irrigate the land area they had to irrigate; if a shareholder 
had excess water to their property, the canal company was still the one that owned the water 
right, and they would put it to beneficial use or make sure it was put to beneficial use. Discussion 
about the Wasatch Irrigation Policy.

Councilmember Straddeck asked who paid for the infrastructure. Anderson said that was the 
important question. Mumford talked about some different options. A couple years ago the City 
applied for a grant but was unsuccessful in getting that. Another option would be the other 
extreme--the City could do some debt financing and build that into the rates charged where the 
customer paid 100% of that cost.  Anderson said the challenge was that there were those on 
pressurized irrigation already and paid for the infrastructure with the price of their lot. These new 
users had not paid anything for the infrastructure. Mayor Phillips questioned how people would 
be treated fairly because some had water rights and others did not. 

McKrola said he was asked to attend this meeting tonight to make sure the interests of Wasatch 
Irrigation were addressed. He said Wasatch Irrigation wanted to get their users on pressurized 
irrigation. It was indicated infrastructure costs were built into the Center Street Project. 
McKrola suggested those with water rights would pay less than those without, or those with 
water rights could use the system and those without water rights would have to use the culinary 

8 of 9 cc09032009



system. McKrola talked additionally about Center Street residents—those with water rights and 
those without.  

Mumford talked about the culinary irrigation users and how they use Heber City’s water rights 
via well water.  However, a ditch user who did not irrigate their yards with culinary water, was 
using their personal water rights. He indicated those could be sold. Then those people, when on 
the pressurized system, would be using Heber’s water rights; thus causing additional use of 
Heber’s water. He clarified that Heber never had those rights but then had to come up with 
additional water rights to provide service to those users who used the pressurized system. 
McKrola said that was happening all over Heber. Councilmember Horner expressed concern 
with the homeowners having an expense because of the delivery system. Additional discussion.

Mumford suggested additional discussion needed to take place and a plan put in place by next 
spring.  

Approval – Hangar Rental Agreement:  Councilmember Horner asked why the City was 
paying the electricity costs. Anderson said because the electricity billing was in the City’s name
—the City owned the hangars. If the Council wanted the leasor to put the electricity in their 
name, they could. Anderson said it was anticipated the cost was incurred because of lights and 
the hangar door opener. Anderson said this proposed agreement was modified from something 
used in Salt Lake. He said the Airport Board had reviewed the Agreement and recommended it. 
Councilmember Straddeck said there was no need for the City to pay the electricity bill--he 
agreed with Councilmember Horner on that. 

Councilmember Straddeck moved to approve the Hangar Rental Agreement striking out the 
clause that Heber City would pay up to $20 in electricity costs. Councilmember Bradshaw made 
the second. No further discussion. The voting was unanimous in the affirmative. 

CITY COUNCIL BOARD ASSIGNMENT REPORTS

Wasatch City/County Health Department – 4th Tuesday 
Heber Light and Power – 4th Wednesday 
Heber City Planning Commission – 4th Thursday 
Historic Preservation – As Needed

No reports were given.

As there was no further business, the September 3, 2009, Heber City Council meeting adjourned.

                                                                                    
Paulette Thurber, City Recorder

9 of 9 cc09032009


